
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams 03450 450 500 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Monday 8 February 2010 

 
To: Councillor Tom Bygott, Portfolio Holder 
 
 James Hockney Scrutiny Monitor 
 Sebastian Kindersley Opposition Spokesman 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of POLICY AND PERFORMANCE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER'S MEETING, which will be held in MONKFIELD ROOM, FIRST FLOOR at South 
Cambridgeshire Hall on MONDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 2010 at 5.30 p.m. 
 
Yours faithfully 
GJ HARLOCK 
Chief Executive 
 
Requests for a large print agenda must be received at least 48 hours before the meeting. 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
 PROCEDURAL ITEMS   
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting   1 - 4 
 The Portfolio Holder is asked to sign the minutes of the meeting held on 

Thursday 14 January 2010, as a correct record. 
 

   
 RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET / COUNCIL   
 
3. ICT Capital Programme 2010/11   5 - 12 
 
 DECISION ITEMS   
 
4. Review of Customer Compliments, Comments & Complaints 

Procedure  
 13 - 26 

 
 STANDING ITEMS   
 
5. Forward Plan   27 - 28 
 The Portfolio Holder will maintain, for agreement at each meeting, a 

Forward Plan identifying all matters relevant to the Portfolio which it is 
believed are likely to be the subject of consideration and / or decision by 
the Portfolio Holder, or recommendation to, or referral by, the Portfolio 
Holder to Cabinet, Council, or any other constituent part of the Council.   
The plan will be updated as necessary.  The Portfolio Holder will be 
responsible for the content and accuracy of the forward plan. 

 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB23 6EA 

t: 03450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 
minicom: 01480 376743 
www.scambs.gov.uk 



   
6. Date of Next Meeting    
 The next meeting will be held on Thursday 11 March 2010 at 11am in the 

Jeavons Room. 
 

   



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 While the District Council endeavours to ensure that visitors come to no harm when visiting South 
Cambridgeshire Hall, those visitors also have a responsibility to make sure that they do not risk their own 
or others’ safety. 
 
Increased hygiene at South Cambridgeshire Hall 
In light of the swine flu pandemic, we have intensified our usual cleaning routines in council buildings. We 
have also introduced hand gel dispensers throughout the offices, including public areas. When visiting 
South Cambridgeshire Hall you are encouraged to use these facilities if and when required to help limit the 
spread of flu. 
 
Security 
Members of the public attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices must report to 
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badges issued.  Before leaving the building, such 
visitors must sign out and return their Visitor badges to Reception. 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Evacuate the building using the nearest escape 
route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside 
the door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park. 
• Do not use the lifts to exit the building.  If you are unable to negotiate stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings are provided with fire refuge areas, which afford protection for a 
minimum of 1.5 hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for assistance from the Council fire 
wardens or the fire brigade. 

• Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 
If someone feels unwell or needs first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 
The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and 
minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us 
know, and we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  
There are disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Hearing loops and earphones are available 
from reception and can be used in all meeting rooms. 
 
Toilets 
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business 
Unless specifically authorised by resolution, no audio and / or visual or photographic recording in any 
format is allowed at any meeting of the Council, the executive (Cabinet), or any committee, sub-committee 
or other sub-group of the Council or the executive. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 
No member of the public shall be allowed to bring into or display at any Council meeting any banner, 
placard, poster or other similar item. The Chairman may require any such item to be removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person concerned.  If they 
continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If there is a general 
disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call for that part to be 
cleared. 
 
Smoking 
Since 1 July 2008, the Council has operated a new Smoke Free Policy. Visitors are not allowed to smoke 
at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  Visitors are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 
 
Mobile Phones 
Visitors are asked to make sure that their phones and other mobile devices are set on silent / vibrate 
mode during meetings or are switched off altogether. 
   



This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder's Meeting held on 
Thursday, 14 January 2010 at 11.00 a.m. 

 
Portfolio Holder: Tim Wotherspoon 
 
Officers: 
Patrick Adams Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Paul Howes Corporate Manager, Community and Customer 

Services 
Steve Rayment Head of ICT 
Sally Smart Principal Accountant Financial & Systems 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 None.  
  
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2009 were agreed as a correct record.  
  
3. CAPITAL & REVENUE ESTIMATES FOR THE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE 

PORTFOLIO 2010/11 
 
 The Principal Accountant Finance & Systems presented this report on the Revenue 

Estimates up to the year 2010/11. She explained that overall the estimate had been £360 
within the approved target. 
 
ICT estimates 
The Policy and Performance Portfolio holder suggested that in future the ICT budgetary 
figures be included with this portfolio’s estimates, as well as those of the Finance and 
Staffing portfolio. The Principal Accountant Finance & Systems explained that this would 
require the ICT estimates to be completed a month earlier than usual to allow them to be 
discussed at both portfolio holder meetings. 
 
The Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder 
 
RECOMMENDED TO CABINET the Revenue Estimates as laid out in Appendix A of 

the report.  
  
4. DRAFT ICT SERVICE PLAN 2010/11 
 
 The Head of ICT presented this report on the Draft ICT Service Plan for 2010/11 and he 

made the following points. 
 
ICT Review 
The ICT Review would be concluded by the end of March, with all the new post holders in 
place on 1 February 2010.  
 
ICT XP Upgrade 
30 more units needed to be replaced to complete the ICT upgrade to MS Windows XP. It 
was noted that the current windows package would be supported by Microsoft until April 
2014. 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder's Meeting Thursday, 14 January 2010 

Disaster Recovery Strategy 
A disaster recovery strategy was in place that would ensure that the Council would be able 
to receive replacement units in 4 hours and then set them up with the backed-up data in 
24 hours. 
 
Government Connect programmes 
The Government Connect programme (v3.0) had been successfully implemented and that 
a revised compliance requirement (v.4.x) would soon have to be introduced to meet the 
required target date of August 2010. 
 
Shared service 
Extra ICT resources might be required to facilitate the proposed shared Revenues and 
Benefits service. 
 
Service Plan format 
The Corporate Manager for Community and Customer Services explained that the format 
for Service Plans for 2011/12 would use a different template, as recommended by 
Improvement East and the Audit Commission. 
 
The Policy and Performance portfolio holder NOTED the draft ICT Service Plan 2010/11. 

  
5. DRAFT COMMUNITY AND CUSTOMER SERVICES SERVICE PLAN 
 
 The Corporate Manager for Community and Customer Services introduced the draft 

Community and Customer Services Service Plan. 
 
Satisfaction rates 
The Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder expressed concern at the reality gap 
between the public’s high satisfaction rate for the Council’s services and the disappointing 
satisfaction rate with the Council. The following explanations for this were provided: 

• There was a similar discrepancy for other authorities. 
• There was a lack of awareness of the different responsibilities for district and 
county councils 

• Media influence 
• Many did not understand that the authority which collected the Council Tax did not 
receive it all. 

• The disparate population made it harder to communicate. 
 
Comprehensive Area Assessment 
The Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder stated that he was pleased with the narrative 
of the CAA, but disappointed with the 2 out 4 scores. The Corporate Manager for 
Community and Customers Services suggested that the Council needed to be more 
proactive in promoting its achievements and achieving its targets. The Policy and 
Performance Portfolio Holder supported the idea of carrying out a self-assessment. It was 
noted that the Conservative Party had stated that they would replace the CAA with a 
different assessment system if elected. 
 
CorVu 
It was hoped that all Cabinet members would become regular users of the CorVu system 
and it was suggested that this could be achieved by making the CorVu site their 
homepage when they log into Insite. 
 
The Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder NOTED the report.  

  

Page 2



Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder's Meeting Thursday, 14 January 2010 

6. FORWARD PLAN 
 
 The Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder stated that writing a job description for 

portfolio holders would help with succession planning and so would remain on the Forward 
Plan. 
 
The following items were added to the Plan: 

• The ICT Strategy for March 
• The ICT Security Policy for September 
• Customer Satisfaction Survey Results for November 
• CAA framework for March’s meeting  

 
With these amendments the Policy and Performance Portfolio Holder NOTED the report. 

  
7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was noted that the next meeting would be held on Thursday 11 March at 11am in the 

Jeavons Room.  
  
  

The Meeting ended at 12.10 p.m. 
 

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is left blank intentionally.



������	
���)�����

�����	��	
���
)������)����
��������	������������)����������)��

���	�� ���)���� ���)��� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)����
�  !"�  # �  #"� $ �  #"� $ � $ "� $$ � $$"� $� � $�"� $% � $%"� $& � $&"� $'

( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

$�) %�!%# *���
���+	�� ��%�$�$  ��&#'� & %�%!!�,  ��$&)�,  $�)!��,  $�,%��,  $�,&��,  
#��##�'%) -�	�)��������	������	�� !�$)'�&) )�$)'�&) &�% %�$, %��% �   %��% �   %��% �   %��% �   
$$�  %�%), .�����/��)�����0����)�	
� $ �&#,�') #�,) �'$ )�,#$�), '�%))�,  '� $��,  &�!,��,  &�!)��,  

+)��������1�2
�)��&,�,�)� /��)��������)��� �'�#�&�') � �&�),%�)! � ���$,)�,  � �$�&���,  � �$�$%'�,% � �)' �   � �)' �   �
�%�)�%� )&� *
�����3�/���
)�	�)��� �&�$,,�'  � �&��#&�$% � �&�&)#�,, � �%�)#'�   � �%�)$ �   � �%�)$ �   � �%�)  �   �

�)��)%�� ����
��� �'�'  � �!��$  � �$� &&�'  � �$, �   �    
 -�	�)��������	������	���������	��/���
)�	�)��� �&  �   � �&  �   �      
 *���
���+	���������	��/���
)�	�)���  �$% �'  �      

%#� ') +)����)�������	������        
�$$�  %�%),� �$ �&#,�') � �#�,) �'$ � �)�,#$�), � �'�%))�,  � �&�!&'�,% � �&�&, �   � �&�&' �   �

 4
�������	����5�-�	�)�������4����)���6��)��
1�*
���     �$,,�#) � �& ��,  � �&���,  �
������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� �������������������������

�$$�  %�%),� .�����/��)����+)����)�� �$ �&#,�') � �#�,) �'$ � �)�,#$�), � �'�%))�,  � �'� $��,  � �&�!,��,  � �&�!)��,  �

/��)��������)���

�#��!!�'&!� �
�	����5�
��
� �&� �&�') � �&�%$#�,$ � �$��)'�!% � �,'!��% � �%!'�,% �   

���)����)��1��
�5
��

�%&$�!)&� �.7������ �$��  �   � �$�   �   � �$��  �   � �$�&  �   � �$�,  �   � �$�!  �   � ���   �   �
���'#!�#),� �8	)�1�9��
��9���� �%�   �   � ���   �   � �$�!  �   � �$�,  �   � �$�&  �   � �$��  �   � �$�   �   �
�% )�,' � :���
��  �) �   �      
#) �!$& �
���5�

������/;*����� ��%  �   $�%' �   $�&' �   $�!' �   ���' �   ���' �   ���' �   

)��&,�,�) 	����)��1��
����5)�������0����)�	
� '�#�&�') &�),%�)! ��$,)�,  $�&���,  $�$%'�,% )' �   )' �   
 �
���5�
���"�5
����
���
��        

�&�%$#�, )� /��)��������)����<��
�����7������  �$��)'�!% � �,'!��% � �%!'�,% �    

=�$

A
genda Item

 3
P

age 5



������	
���)�����
������)
�������
�������

������	��	
���
)����

���	�� ���)���� ���)��� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)����
�  !"�  # �  #"� $ �  #"� $ � $ "� $$ � $$"� $� � $�"� $% � $%"� $& � $&"� $'

( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
/��)�����0����)�	
�

$�&,#�)!' ��8	)�)�)����5��0)��)���6����)��� %�   �   ��   �   $�   �       

)�)#'�)'� >��
���������5�-�	�)���9���? '�$ )�&) '�$ )�&) %�% %�$, %��% �   %��% �   %��% �   %��% �   

%&�   /����>�����)���*
���� ,!�   ,!�        
������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� �������������������������

#��##�'%) -���/��)�����0����)�	
� !�$)'�&) )�$)'�&) &�% %�$, %��% �   %��% �   %��% �   %��% �   

+)��������12
�,�$ #�)�%� /��)��������)��� �&�&,!�&) � �%�&,!�,  � �$�   �   �     
�%�$)!�& !� �@���
�����)
����������� �%��!)�   � �%��!,�!) � �%��)'�,, � �%��  �   � �%��  �   � �%��  �   � �%��  �   �

 �����	��/���
)�	�)������/��)����:	���1 �&  �   � �&  �   �      
�)�!#,� -�	�)���/��)����*
���     �  �  �  �

�%�'$ � :���
�*
�����3�/���
)�	�)���������)����� �� �   � �� �   � ��)�'  � �% �   � �% �   � �% �   � �% �   �
������������������������� �!�$)'�&) � �)�$)'�&) � �&�% %�$, � �%��% �   � �%��% �   � �%��% �   � �%��% �   �

�#��##�'%)� �������������������������

������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� �������������������������

=��

P
age 6



������	
���)�����
�
)�����	
����

�����	��	
���
)������)����
��������	������������)����������)��

���	�� ���)���� ���)��� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)����
�  !"�  # �  #"� $ �  #"� $ � $ "� $$ � $$"� $� � $�"� $% � $%"� $& � $&"� $'

( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

�������
�
������� 
�!"��!#�!
& ��&$ A :��
5����/�
�4�
?)��  #�##      

,  A /���	��
��8	)������
��/.��55)�)���1�9��)���  %�&       
 A B���
������.���������>��
��������        
 A 9�	���/�����-����C�>���
����D���)�	����
��   $ �       

& �!&$  $%�%# $ �       

�!#��$
�
��"�!"%����
�!"��!#�!
%�#�,%& A >/.�6���������� , '�'  �%%�#' �)&�   %#&�   $##�   $)#�   $!#�   
%�#�,%& , '�'  �%%�#' �)&�   %#&�   $##�   $)#�   $!#�   

�#����� 
�!"��!#�!
�!�&�"'���!�(
-)���
)��7	)��)�����)��E�B�
�@���
)��������

&��%'# /����
���)����
���������������9������*
���� &��,  &��,  &��,  &��,  &��,  &��,  &��,  
 9��6��)��/�	
���������-����1 ���    ���       

&�&  �
��������1�*
���� &�&  &�&  &�&  &�&  &�&  &�&  &�&  
$ �&'� B)���)5��������������9����� $ �'  $ �'  $ �'  $ �'  $ �'  $ �'  $ �'  
#��$! .
�������-�����4�
���
��)�"4�
)���4����)�� $&�'  $&�'  $&�'  $&�'  $&�'  $&�'  $&�'  

$$�,  4�
)���4�����>�)�)��)�� $$�,  $$�,  $$�,  $$�,  $$�,  $$�,  $$�,  

��)�"
�#����� (
,&% A >/.�6���������� $�!�   !'�        

)!�,)� �%%�,  $,!�,  $ '�,  !%�,  !%�,  !%�,  !%�,  

=�%

P
age 7



���	�� ���)���� ���)��� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)����
�  !"�  # �  #"� $ �  #"� $ � $ "� $$ � $$"� $� � $�"� $% � $%"� $& � $&"� $'

( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

��'�"!�%����#
��"'���&
�!"��!#�!
>����
��������)�	���3�*
����B�����/���E�9�
�)���

$%!�' ' A B�����/������)���D��)����  '�'       
$'��&', A F�
��)������1��)���7�0��        

 A B�������7)��   $�' #�       
���
����B���
��	
���

 A .
����
  &!�'       
 A +��)��@���
�  %%�,   ) �      
 A �0������
    # �      

9�
����/�����)��
 A 9�)����9�
����9�����
�    ,'�   $% �     
 A ;�1C71�;)���
�7)�� $)�   $)�        

���)
���������4
�����)��
 A �)
�G	��)�1�@��)��
)����8	)����� ' �   ' �        
 A ��)��)����>������
1        
 -�	�)�����������9����� $  �   $$ �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   

>��
��������*
����";����
 �������)��        

##�%$' -��������)
�����)������ $  �   $�'�   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   
6)�������+��)�)�)��

, )�,', ��@������
1 ,, �   )$��   ,, �   ,, �   ,, �   ,, �   ,, �   
$ � !# ��6)��
��)���
1 $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   

$�  !� �$ #%)�   $�$$$�,  ��%)#�   $� #'�   $�   �   !) �   !) �   

�!*&�� 
�!"��!#�!
,�,)$ A /��)��������
�)���������5�-����0����)�	
� $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   $ �   

 *
���������9;� �' �   $&'�   �' �   �' �   �' �   �' �   �' �   
,�,)$ �, �   $''�   �, �   �, �   �, �   �, �   �, �   

��+
�!%%*�����&
�!"��!#�!
 /�)�����/����� �'�   �'�   $  �   )'�      

#%��&! D)������9��
���+��)�)�)�� $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   
$ ,�)'� /���	�)�1�+��)�)�)�� $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   $  �   
& �   �
���/��)����*
���� & �   & �   & �   & �   & �   & �   & �   

 *
������
��  !)�!)      

�& �   �,'�   %'��!) %& �   %$'�   �& �   �& �   �& �   

=�&

P
age 8



������	
���)�����
�
)�����	
����

�����	��	
���
)������)����
��������	������������)����������)��

���	�� ���)���� ���)��� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)����
�  !"�  # �  #"� $ �  #"� $ � $ "� $$ � $$"� $� � $�"� $% � $%"� $& � $&"� $'

( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

	��,�"-&
�!"��!#�!
 /�������)����<�	����7	�  $& �        
 *����H�)����	
�9�����  &�   
 6)��C�C�)���@)�)�	�  % �        
 ;�����9�
����)��4�
���
��)��4
������ � �   �&�,% � �       
 � �   $#!�,% � �       

��)�"
�
�.."!'�,
/$
��/����
 *
�������/���
)����9��
���;����.
	��  �,$�        
  �,$�        

$�) %�!%# )"!&&
��.���#
�0.��,��*"�
1
)���"�#
�*�,
2 ��%�$�$  ��&#'� & %�%!!�,  ��$&)�,  $�)!��,  $�,%��,  $�,&��,  

������	
���)�����
�
)�����	
����

�����	��	
���
)������)����
��������	������������)����������)��

���	�� ���)���� ���)��� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)����
�  !"�  # �  #"� $ �  #"� $ � $ "� $$ � $$"� $� � $�"� $% � $%"� $& � $&"� $'

( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

$�) %�!%# )"!&&
��.���#
�0.��,��*"�
1
)���"�#
�*�,
2 ��%�$�$  ��&#'� & %�%!!�,  ��$&)�,  $�)!��,  $�,%��,  $�,&��,  

����1�����12
,,!�)' +)0��������� !$ �'  &#,�#& $�! %�   ,�#�   %%#�   $!#�   $##�   

$� %'� !# 6�5�

���/��
��� $�'$ �,  $�##!�$  $�'!'�,  $�'$!�,  $�&&%�,  $�&&%�,  $�&&%�,  
������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� �������������������������

$�) %�!%# *
����/��)�����0����)�	
����*���
���+	���� ��%�$�$  ��&#'� & %�%!!�,  ��$&)�,  $�)!��,  $�,%��,  $�,&��,  

=�'
=�,

P
age 9



������	
���)�����
�
)�����	
����

�����	��	
���
)������)����
��������	������������)����������)��

���	�� ���)���� ���)��� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)���� ���)����
�  !"�  # �  #"� $ �  #"� $ � $ "� $$ � $$"� $� � $�"� $% � $%"� $& � $&"� $'

( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

+)��������12
�$�$%,�# &� /��)��������)���� �$�&',�$  � �$��#'�$! � �$�$,)�,  � �$�&���,  � �$�$%'�,% � �)' �   � �)' �   �
��&&�   � 9���)5)���*���
������*
�����6/;*� ��%'�   � ��%!�&  � ��& �   � ��  �   � ��  �   � ��  �   � ��  �   �

 9���)5)���*���
������*
�����;94� �&'�   � ���%�,% � �$� �   � �)'�   �    
9���)5)���*���
������*
�����/-� �''�   � �#'�   �      

�$%!�' '� 4�
���
��)��+	��)���C�B�������7)��   �'  �   �     
 $ ,���
�������/���
)�	�)����
)���5������5�
�-�	�)��� ��' �   � �$&'�   � ��' �   � ��' �   � ��' �   � ��' �   � ��' �   �

�$ #�& &� -�	�)���/��)����*
���� �! �   � �,,�!, � �' �   � �& �   � �% �   � �% �   � �� �   �
 *
������
���*
���        
 ����)���-�
)�����*
��� �$,�'  �  �$,�'  �     

/���
)���)
��/�	��1�/�	��)�  �$% �'  �      
�& �) !� :���
�*
���  �!)�!) �      

�,&%� -�	�)���3�4����)���6��)��
1�*
��� �$)!�   �    �$,,�#) � �& ��,  � �&���,  �
�)��)%�� ����
���  �!��$  � �$� %#�   � �$, �   �    

 -)���
)��7	)��)����4
���
���)���+	�� �'�'  �  �'�'  �     
�����	�  �$% �'  �      

%#� ') H���/��)����+)����)������	��������:���
�        
�$�) %�!%#� .�����/��)����+)����)�� ���%�$�$  � ���&#'� & � �%�%!!�,  � ���$&)�,  � �$�)!��,  � �$�,%��,  � �$�,&��,  �

P
age 10



������	
��	��)
)�	��������)���)�������)��	

������	
��	
�)
)�	�

�����
���	�	
�	������
�

������	�
��
)�����	������������� ���
�����
����
�����	�
)��
�������	
� ���
������!�"#$�����%
$��&������	��������	� ���
�����

�	
	�)����
�

��
)
�	�����)���
�����������
'���)�
��$���(�� ���)�
�	&�$��*������ ��+�����	
�
,�	��*���&�"����&
�������
�����	� �#�-�%���	

����� �)
���	�����)
�	����������
�$"������
����	 �#�-�%���	

��)

�
���	����	�����������
��
�	��)���
! �#.����
"�#	����)

�
���	����	�! �#/
���

$
����
�	
�)���	����	����������� �#�-
*���
�

�����
�����������
$���	������
�	�
����	��
)��-���������	��� ���
�����
����	��	
�-�0� +#1���&	

%	&������
���	�����������
2���������
�	��3�����	��� /#�"&
���
�
$
�����	%�3�����	��� /#�"&
���
�
��	��$���	�������	� /#�"&
���
�
$����	��$&���� -#������

'	)�	������������ ������.���
�

P
age 11



������	
���)���������������������	�������	

������������������ �!����"� ��#�$��%��&����%����'��(��#"�)���"

�����	

	��)���)�	����������
�)����	��������
����)������������������)����
�������	���	)�������	)���)������	��������
�	���������������������������������������
��
���	���	������)������)������ !��	��
����������"��)�������	)��	����
���������)��������)�������
���	������#$

%)�	�������
&�
�)��

�������! �' ��
(

�!�������

)��"��(�����������"*
)��������*)��������� ��"�+!

)���	����&��
��)���,��)��" -
.	)�������	)�/����0)��)����)��1������" - !"'�2
3���4��	���
�5�������)��5���	����	)�,��)�� -

)���	����&��
��)���6���������	)�7�)� 8'"+��

�	��
�%)�	��������.�����
�,��)���/

	����	)��� ������! �' �� 28"!2!

P
age 12



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Councillor Tom Bygott 08 February 2010 
AUTHOR/S: Paul Knight - Customer Service Coordinator  

 
 

HANDLING OF COMPLAINTS, COMMENTS AND COMPLIMENTS POLICY 
 
Purpose 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to propose a policy to support the Council’s current 

procedures for the handling of complaints, comments and compliments.  
 
2. This is not a key decision. 

 
Executive Summary 
 

3. The Portfolio Holder is asked to agree the policy attached in APPENDIX 1 for 
adoption and publication.  
 
Background 

 
4. The Council publishes corporate customer service standards, which clearly set out 

what customers can expect from the Council, including a formal complaints 
procedure. Whilst this procedure has been implemented throughout the Council, a 
need for detailed guidance for officers and Members has been identified. 

 
5. The policy has been created to provide clear and concise information for both officers 

and Members in relation to the handling of complaints, comments and compliments. 
 

 
Considerations 

 
6. Customer views are important to the Council, they help shape services to support the 

needs of the community. Providing insight into what the Council does well and where 
improvements can be made enables the Council to provide a responsive service that 
changes and adapts with the needs of its customers. A formal policy for the handling 
of complaints, comments and compliments is needed to ensure all feedback is 
captured. 

 
7. In the event of a complaint the Council will endeavour to resolve a problem at the time 

it is brought to its attention, within the constraints that apply and to the customer’s 
satisfaction. Where this is not possible the formal policy for the handling of complaints 
should be applied. 

 
8. The Local Government Ombudsman will not usually investigate complaints unless the 

Council has been given the opportunity to conduct an investigation under its formal 
procedure. The Local Government Ombudsman expects the Council to address 
complaints in a positive manner and does not look favourably on Councils who fail to 
apply their procedure consistently. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 13



Options 
 

9. The Council needs to have a policy in place to support its current procedures. To 
meet customer expectations and to gain the maximum value from feedback, officers 
and Members must be fully aware of the systems in place and the Councils 
commitment to its customer service standards. 

 
Implications 

 
Financial Decisions by the Local Government Ombudsman could have 

financial implications for the Council. 
Legal None 
Staffing None 
Risk Management There is reputational risk if complaints and comments are not 

dealt with in line with the Council’s procedures. 

10. 

Equal Opportunities All complainants, comments and compliments will be dealt with 
in a fair and open manner. 

 
Consultations 
 

11. The Handling Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy has been endorsed by 
the Service First Steering Group and Executive Management Team and his now 
recommended for Portfolio Holder approval. 

 
 

Effect on Strategic Aims 
 
Commitment to being a listening council, providing first class services accessible to all. 12. 
The Handling Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy provides a structure 
for recording and responding to customer feedback. Information provided can and 
will be used to further improve services.  

 
 

Recommendations 
 
13. That the Handling of Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy detailed in 

APPENDIX 1 be adopted as Council policy. 
 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  
 
None 

 
Contact Officer:  Paul Knight –  Customer Service Coordinator  

Telephone: (01954) 713299 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 – Handling Complaints, Comments & Compliments Policy 

Page 14



 
 

 
 
 
 

Handling of  

Customer Complaints  

Comments and Compliments 
 

 
Corporate Policy Document 

 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

January 2010 
 
 

 
 

Page 15



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 2 

Contents                               
 
 Section 

 
Page No. 

1. Introduction 
 

3 

2. Scope 
 

3 

3. Complaints, comments and compliments – definitions 
 

3.1 Complaint 
3.2 Comment 
3.3 Compliment 

 

3 

4. Complaints, compliments and comments process 
 

4.1 Complaints Process 
4.2 Comments Process 
4.3 Compliments Process 
 

4 - 6 
 

5. Exceptions 
 

6 

6. Learning from complaints 
 

6 

7. Reporting complaints and compliments 
 

7 
 

8. Unreasonable or unreasonably persistent complainants 7 
 

9. Anonymous complaints 
 

7 

10. Confidentiality 
 

8 

11. Role descriptions 
 

11.1 Members and Officers of the Council 
11.2 Customer Services Coordinator 
11.3 Appointed Service Coordinator 
11.4 Responding Officer 
 

8 – 9 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 3 

1. Introduction                            
 
South Cambridgeshire District Council is committed to providing excellent customer 
service and aims to be a listening council, providing first class services to all. 
 
The views of our customers are important to the Council, they help us shape services 
to support the needs of our communities. Providing insight into what we are doing 
well and where we can improve enables the Council to provide a responsive service 
that changes and adapts with the needs of customers. 
 
Committed to improving services and providing excellent customer service, the 
Council will treat complaints, comments and compliments with respect and seek to 
understand the customer’s point of view. 
 
The Council will endeavour to resolve problems at the time they are brought to 
attention, within the constraints that apply and to the customer’s satisfaction. Where 
this is not possible the formal complaints procedure should be applied. 
 
 
2. Scope  
 
This document sets out how South Cambridgeshire District Council manages and 
responds to complaints, comments and compliments. 
 
This policy supports the Customer Service Strategy and is linked with the Handling of 
Unreasonable or unreasonably Persistent Complaints Policy. 
 
 
3. Complaints, comments and compliments – Definitions 
 
3.1 Complaint 
 
A complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction or concern, however made, about the 
standard of service, actions or lack of actions by the District Council and its staff, 
affecting an individual customer or group of customers. 
 
A complaint is not a service request. A service request is defined as a customer 
contact that for the first time brings a matter to the Council’s attention and requests a 
service offered by the council. 
 
3.2 Comment 
 
A comment can be described as a volunteered personal opinion or belief, feedback 
or remark expressed by a customer. Unless specifically requested, there is not an 
automatic assumption that the Council will reply to comments. However, where it is 
felt appropriate or where the customer indicates they expect a reply, this should be 
sent within 10 working days. 
 
3.3 Compliment 
 
A compliment is defined as a customer statement of positive recognition or praise for 
a service or member of staff. 
 

Page 17



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 4 

4. Complaints, comments and compliments – Process 
 
4.1 Complaints Process 
 
The complaints process has a three stage structure. Stage one and two complaints 
are investigated by the Council, stage three complaints are investigated by the Local 
Government Ombudsman. 
 
In all circumstances the Council will act in accordance with its values; Trust, Mutual 
Respect, Customer Service, Commitment to improving services. 
 
Officers responding to complaints are encouraged to speak with complainants during 
the investigation of the complaint to help gain a greater understanding of the 
complainant’s point of view. 
 
Stage 1 
 
Stage one complaints will be registered and acknowledged (within three working 
days) by the Customer Service Coordinator.  
 
Registered complaints will be passed to the appropriate Corporate Manager, who will 
review the complaint and either respond personally or arrange for the appropriate 
Service Manager to respond (within 10 working days of acknowledgement). All stage 
one responses will be signed by the Corporate Manager, or in absence of a 
Corporate Manager a Service Manager. 
 
The Corporate Manager or Service Manager will send the response directly to the 
complainant, providing a copy of the response to the Customer Service Coordinator. 
 
Stage 2 
 
A complaint will enter stage two of the process if the complainant advises that they 
are dissatisfied with the result of stage one. In exceptional circumstances a complaint 
may be escalated to stage two in the first instance. 
 
Stage two complaints will be registered and acknowledged (within three working 
days) by the Customer Service Coordinator.  
 
Registered complaints will be passed to the appropriate member of the Senior 
Management Team, who will review the complaint and liaise with the appropriate 
Corporate Manager and/or Service Manager.  
 
The Senior Management Team member will send the response directly to the 
complainant (within 20 working days of acknowledgement), providing a copy of the 
response to the Customer Service Coordinator. All stage two responses will be 
signed by a member of the Senior Management Team. 
 
Stage 3 
 
If a complainant is dissatisfied with the outcome of the stage two complaint they may 
wish to enter stage three of the complaints process and contact the Local 
Government Ombudsman directly. 
 

Page 18



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 5 

A complainant may approach the Local Government Ombudsman at any stage of the 
complaints process, although the Ombudsman will not usually investigate complaints 
unless the Council has had an opportunity to investigate at stages one and two first. 
 
Stage three complaints will be registered and acknowledged (within three working 
days) by the Customer Service Coordinator. 
 
Registered complaints will be passed to the appropriate Corporate Manager, who will 
review the complaint and either respond personally or arrange for the appropriate 
Service Manager to respond within 28 days. Note the response deadline is 28 days 
not 28 working days. All stage three responses will be signed by the Corporate 
Manager, or in absence of a Corporate Manager a Service Manager. 
 
The Corporate Manager or Service Manager will send the response directly to the 
Local Government Ombudsman, providing a copy of the response to the Customer 
Service Coordinator. 
 

Stage 1 & 2 Complaints Flowchart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stage 3 Local Government Ombudsman Complaints Flowchart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Customer Complaint 

Customer Services 
Coordinator 

 
Register & Acknowledge 

STAGE 2 
 

SMT Officer 
 

STAGE 1 
Corporate Manager 

| 
Service Manager 

Response Response 

Acknowledge 

Local Government 
Ombudsman 

 
Complaint 

Customer Services 
Coordinator 

 
Registers & Acknowledges 

Corporate Manager 
| 

Service Manager 

Response 

Acknowledge 

 
Customer 

Page 19



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 6 

 
4.2 Comments Process 
 
Customer comments are managed outside of the complaints process. Comments 
made to the Customer Services Coordinator will be forwarded to the appropriate 
Service Manager to consider. 
 
Unless specifically requested, there is not an automatic assumption that the Council 
will reply to comments. However, where it is felt appropriate or where the customer 
indicates they expect a reply, this should be sent within 10 working days. 
 
Service Managers are expected to record comments relating to their Service Area. 
 
 
4.3 Compliments Process 
 
Copies of all compliments should be provided to the Customer Services Coordinator, 
who will maintain a central register of compliments. 
 
Compliments should be celebrated and shared amongst Service Areas. 
 
 
5. Exceptions 
 
The following exceptions apply to this policy: 
 

• Under normal circumstances the Council is unable to investigate complaints 
relating to issues that are greater than 12 months old. 

 
• The complaints process cannot be used to complain about the conduct of 

Councillors of a Councillor. Complaints of this nature should be directed to the 
Monitoring Officer at monitoring.officer@scambs.gov.uk.  

 
• The complaints process excludes complaints made by our suppliers, partners 

and other public authorities regarding our business relationships. 
 

• Staff grievances cannot be dealt with through the complaints process. Staff 
grievances are covered in the Grievance Policy and Procedure. 

 
• Where statutory procedures are in place, complainants should use these 

procedures to pursue their complaint. 
 
6. Learning from complaints 
 
The Council values complaints and uses the information to inform service planning 
that shape services that support the needs of the customer. To this end all 
respondents to complaints are required to complete a ‘Learning from Complaints 
Form’.  
 
The Learning from Complaints Form provides an opportunity for officers to review the 
complaint and identify any lessons learnt and any corrective action taken. A copy of 
the form should accompany a copy of the response sent to the Corporate Customer 
Service Coordinator.  
 

Page 20



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 7 

Learning from complaints will be recorded centrally by the Customer Service 
Coordinator and reported to Senior Management Team and the Lead Member on a 
quarterly basis. Lessons learnt will be shared across the Council. 
 
7. Reporting complaints and compliments 
 
Quarterly reports are made to Senior & Executive Management Teams, Service First 
Steering Group and the Lead Member for customer service. 
 
These reports include the following quantitative data: 
 

• volume of complaints 
• complaints by stage 
• complaints by corporate area 
• acknowledge and response rate 
• theme of complaints 

 
Qualitative feedback will also be gathered via a quarterly survey of closed 
complaints. The survey will gather the following information: 
 

• complaint handling satisfaction 
• communication satisfaction 
• complaint process satisfaction 
• speed of response satisfaction 

 
The Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy will be reviewed on an annual 
basis or when statutory requirements change. 
 
 
8. Unreasonable or unreasonably persistent complaints 
 

The Council recognises that customers may exert pressure on the authority when 
making a complaint, as they believe that the Council has failed in its service to them.  
Such pressure may be persistent, but in most cases this is reasonable and 
acceptable. 

A small minority of complainants may pursue their complaints in ways that can 
impede the investigation of their complaint, or impose a significant and 
disproportionate resource requirement on the authority.  Such actions can occur 
during the investigation of a complaint, or once investigations have been completed.  
In these cases, a complainant may be considered unreasonably persistent. 
 
Unreasonable or unreasonably persistent complainants are not covered within this 
policy. The policy for Unreasonable or Unreasonably Persistent Complainants should 
be used when considering restrictive measures with customers. 
 
Violent or abusive behaviour towards staff will not be tolerated under any 
circumstances. Please refer to the Council’s policies and reporting guides relating to 
health and safety and violence at work for further information. 
 
9. Anonymous complaints 
Anonymous complaints should be passed to the Customer Service Coordinator who 
will register the complaint and pass to the appropriate Corporate Manager for 
investigation.  

Page 21



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 8 

 
 
10. Confidentiality 
 
In accordance with the 1998 Data Protection Act, the Council will maintain the 
confidentiality of all personal information, and not disclose it outside of South 
Cambridgeshire District Council without the express permission of the customer. 
 
 
11. Role Descriptions 
 
This section describes the roles and responsibilities of individuals and teams involved 
in the Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy. 
 
11.1 Members and Officers of the Council 
 
Members and Officers of the Council are required, in the first instance, to forward all 
complaints and compliments to the Customer Service Coordinator. 
 
Members and Officers receiving customer comments should forward these 
comments to the appropriate Service Manager. 
 
11.2 Customer Service Coordinator 
 
The Customer Service Coordinator will register and acknowledge all complaints 
within three working days. Compliments will also be registered and maintained on a 
central record. 
 
Complaints and Learning from Complaints Form will be passed to the appropriate 
Corporate Manager. The Customer Service Coordinator will also provide the 
response date. 
 
Responses and Learning from Complaints Forms will be registered with the original 
complaint and a central record will be maintained. 
 
Complaints and compliments will be reported in accordance with section seven of 
this policy. 
 
11.3 Corporate Managers 
 
Corporate Managers are responsible for reviewing all complaints for the services 
under their management. Corporate Managers may respond personally to a 
complainant or may ask a Service Manager to respond. All responses must be 
signed by the Corporate Manager or in their absence a Service Manager. 
 
 
11.4 Responding Officer 
 
The responding officer is responsible for investigating and responding to the 
complaint in accordance with the Customer Service Standards detailed below: 
 

Page 22



 
Responding to Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 9 

• If the investigation into your complaint will not be completed within ten 
working days, you will receive a letter informing you of the progress and 
expected timescales. 

 
• If we have made a mistake, you will receive an apology. 

 
• If we were at fault, you will be told what measures are being taken to put 

things right. 
 
A letter template, attached as Appendix 1, has been created to help managers 
ensure responses to complainants meet the customer service standards. 
 
The investigation of a complaint should be conducted in accordance with the Council 
values; trust, mutual respect, commitment to improving services and customer 
service. Investigations should be carried out objectively and responding officers 
should aim to resolve the complaint to the customer’s satisfaction within the 
limitations that apply. 
 
The response should be sent direct to the complainant and a copy provided to the 
appointed Customer Service Coordinator. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is left blank intentionally.



  
 
 
 
 
 

 
Address1 
Address2 
Address3 
Address4 
Address5 
Address6 
Post Code 

 Corporate Area:  Corporate Area 

Our Ref: Contact:  Your Name 

Your Ref: Direct dial:  01954 71extension 

Date (day month year - no commas) Direct email: forename.surname@scambs.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Recipient Name, 

Complaint: COMP00000 

Thank you for your recent correspondence received by this office on <insert Date>. As <insert 
job title> with responsibility for <insert service> your complaint has been passed to me for 
investigation. 
 
<Provide details of investigation> 
 
<Conclusion of investigation> 
 
If complaint is justified: 

Please accept my apologies for <insert details of events/incidents/cause of complaint>. In order 
to try to prevent similar issues arising in future, <insert details of corrective measures we 
have/will take to prevent reoccurrence>>. 
 
If complaint is unjustified: 

<insert details of why complaint is unjustified>. 

 

I trust that this response addresses the issues you have raised. 

Yours sincerely / faithfully 

 

 

Your Name (mixed case) 
Your Job Title 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB23 6EA 

t: 03450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 
minicom: 01480 376743 
www.scambs.gov.uk 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is left blank intentionally.



������	
���) ������
�)	
��������)��
�)��
������	
���)�
�
��	����)�����	��)��������)�
���)���)�����

����
��
���������

���	��
�����)�

���)	�
���� ��� �������  ��������

��)����!�"

#����)��$��

%������!�"

����
���� ���
���
�)������	
���)��
������)�� ���)! �)�")�)#��)�" ����������
������	
���)$�%��
����)��
������)�� ���)! �)�")�)#��)�"
�������) �
�)�	 ����	���)	���������)��
������)�� ���)! �)�")
�)#��)�"

�&��
���� ���
���
�)������	
���)����)��
�)�� ���)'��")�)'��� ����������
������	
���)��%��
����)����)��
�)�� ���)'��")�'���
�������) �
�)�	 ����	���)	���������)����)��
�)�� ���)'��")�)
'���

#���������

(���)�%���% *����+)��)��%�
),��%������)
�%)��-������)�������� �
��).�+�� ,������
).
�+
�%
/
����
�)$�%��
����0)1)�)/�+)������	
���)��
	�+��2)���)
3��
�)!��)�������)
�%)3��
�)!��)�����)�
������)� �

�
��).�+�� $
�)�
����

��		����
�����)���
����)*�����) !���
�)�����+ �
��).�+�� ,������
).
�+
�%
������	
���)$	 ����	���)���
���� 4 ���������� �
��).�+��

A
genda Item

 5
P

age 27



P
age 28

T
his page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 ICT Capital Programme 2010/11
	4 Review of Customer Compliments, Comments & Complaints Procedure
	Customer Complaints Comments and Compliments The Policy Appx 1
	Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy Letter

	5 Forward Plan

